PRELIMINARY INFORMATION FORM (PIF) for INDIVIDUAL PROPERTIES

DHR No. (to be completed by DHR staff)

1. General Property Information

Property name: ”The Grove” also known as the “Ewing House”
Property address: 2533 Mt. Clinton Pike

City or Town:__Rockingham, VA

Zip code: 22802

Name of the Independent City or County where the property is located: __Rockingham
County

Category of Property (choose only one of the following):
Building __x Site Structure Object

2. Physical Aspects
Acreage: 17 acres

Setting (choose only one of the following):
Urban Suburban Town Village Hamlet Rural___ x

Briefly describe the property’s overall setting, including any notable landscape features:

Rural farm estate set near the Linville creek with springs and springhouses.
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3. Architectural Description
Architectural Style(s): __Colonial Federal

Farmhouse

If the property was designed by an architect, landscape architect, engineer, or other professional, please

list here: n/a

If the builder is known, please list here: n/a

Date of construction (can be approximate): 1822 Original with series of additions in
1870’s

Narrative Description:

In the space below, briefly describe the general characteristics of the entire property, such as its current
use (and historic use if different), as well as the primary building or structure on the property (such as a
house, store, mill, factory, depot, bridge, etc.). Include the architectural style, materials and method(s) of
construction, physical appearance and condition (exterior and interior), and any additions, remodeling’s,
or other alterations.

Two story brick house with white picket fence, situated along Mt. Clinton Pike on 5 acres and farm land,
(12 acres) with in ground pool, 2 car garage, and 3 sheds. State Road separates the house from the barn
(still owned by the Goods) and important link to the settlers west of the county

The present 2 story house was constructed in 1822 by the Ewing’s with a double portico porch. Rounded
brick columns with cornices unique to the Shenandoah valley. Double porch removed early 1900s. Had 8
chimneys. Frontier federal style. Excellent condition. Solid brick walls. King and Queened pattern of
bricks (long short long) includes a red lime wash. Lime stone foundation.

House features Heart Pine floors, high ceilings, 6 panel doors, well preserved milk paint and hand carved
fireplaces mantels. Hand hewn beams. Thick solid walls allowed ledges to support the beam construction
of each floor. Full attic with cement basement.

House went under numerous alterations and transitions as early pre-civil war, including an addition built
post-civil war.

Hand dug well, (75-foot-deep, brick lined) spring, and spring house in pasture.

Presently, the landowners own the 2-story brick house with 17 acres. Bought in 2006. All floors stripped
of carpet, linoleum, tile and wood floors preserved. Chair railings and baseboards stripped of 4 layers of
paint to the original milk paint and repainted with similar color of milk paint. Two fireplaces recovered in
upstairs bedrooms and mantels replaced of similar time frame. Wallpaper removed in most rooms.

Presently, land is being used for residence and farming. Outside buildings, include 2 car garage with 3
sheds.
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From 2007 survey”

Architecture Summary: " . . . embellished with brick jack arches, transom-lighted doorways, and frame
cornices.”

Interior Description: "Federal style woodwork is found throughout the entire main block and the original
extension. The central entry leads into a very narrow central passage without a formal stairwell. Instead, an
enclosed corner stairwell is hidden along the back, southwestern side of the passage. The most elaborate
mantel, a delicate Federal design with carved sunbursts and narrow, projecting pilasters remains in what was
used as the parlor--the northeast first-floor room . . . Other interior finish includes wainscoting and a built-in
press . .. chair railing . . . Federal architrave trim . . . recessed and raised six-panel doors."”

Briefly describe any outbuildings or secondary resources (such as barns, sheds, dam and mill pond,
storage tanks, scales, railroad spurs, etc.), including their condition and their estimated construction dates.

Two car cement garage, good condition, built around 1940s
3 Sheds, wood construction, built aprox 1930’s

Inground Pool with pool shed about 1980’s,

Department of Historic Resources Preliminary Information Form 3
Rev. January 2017
2/1/2023



4. Property’s History and Significance
In the space below, briefly describe the history of the property, such as significant events, persons,
and/or families associated with the property. Please list all soutces of information used to research the
history of the property. (It is not necessary to attach lengthy articles or family genealogies to this form.)

If the property is important for its architecture, engineering, landscape architecture, or other aspects of
design, please include a brief explanation of this aspect.

The 2-story house was found and established by a pioneering family, Ewing’s, descendants from
Scotland. This western most farm claimed, initially 800 acres, centered by fortified log cabin in 1742.
William Ewing II, (1780-1857) the builder was a successful farmer, owned a large plantation and “closely
identified with the affairs of the county” (Terrll,1970). Speculated to have enslaved persons. House
remained with Ewings for 177 years. Oral tradition notes that a cannon ball hit the back of the house.
Fireplace mantles noted to be German hessian soldiers.

Owners of property since Ewing family

CW Wampler

New York Life Insurance Company
Sanford/Ellen Good (1948-2005)

Loren Hostetter/Glenda Siegrist (2006-present

Resources: Deeds, letters, newspaper articles.
Book:

Old House in Rockingham County 1750-1850 (1970) by Isaac Long Terrell
Old Houses in Rockingham County Revisited 1750-1850 (2000) by Ann Terrell Baker
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5. Property Ownership (Check as many categories as apply):

Private: _ x Public\Local Public\State Public\Federal

Current Legal Owner(s) of the Property (If the property has more than one owner, please list each below
or on an additional sheet.)

name/title: Glenda Siegtist and Loren Hostetter

otganization: n/a

street & number: _2533 Mt. Clinton Pike

city or town: Harrisonburg state: __ VA zip code: 22802

e-mail: __ Glendaloren2003@yvahoo.com __ or Hostetterla@yvahoo.com
telephone: _540 208 8041 (GS) OR 540 607 3747 (I.H)

Legal Owner’s Signature: Date:
¢ » Signature required for processing all applications. * *

In the event of corporate ownership you must provide the name and title of the appropriate contact person.
Contact person: n/a
Daytime Telephone:

Applicant Information (Individual completing form if other than legal owner of property)
name/title: n/a

organization:

street & number:

city or town: state: zip code:
e-mail: telephone:

6. Notification

In some circumstances, it may be necessary for DHR to confer with or notify local officials of proposed
listings of properties within their jurisdiction. In the following space, please provide the contact information
for the local County Administrator, City Manager, and/or Town Manager

name/title: Stephen King , Rockingham County Administrator
locality: Harrisonburg
street & number: 20 East Gay Street
city or town: Harrisonburg state: VA zip code: 22802
telephone: 540 564 3000
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A Refuge Within the Valley:

An Historic Inventory of "The Grove," also known as the William Ewing
Estate, the Nancy Ewing Farmhouse, Brookdale Farm, "Cannonball
House" and the Hosteter-Segrist Home

Compiled from various sources with historical interpretation
by E.K. Knappenberger
2022
Harrisonburg, Virginia



The history of the beautiful old brick estate at 2533 Mt. Clinton Pike, Northwest of Harrisonburg
Virginia, or 38°28'40.1"N 78°54'02.8"W to be precise, is complicated and mirrors the story of
Rockingham County, the South, and the USA. The earliest history of the place has been
somewhat documented in several sources appended here, especially in Clan Ewing of Scotland
Chapter 26. However, there is no history written that captures the scope of the Ewing family
adventure in Virginia -- from Indian raids to B.B. Ewing's tragic death in the Civil War, to the
death in World War 2 of Willim Woodrow Wampler, and beyond.

To understand the place and its origins, must be understood the very complicated stories of
Presbyterianism, Methodism and Mennonism in America between 1720 and 2020. Colonialism,
Slavery, War, Reconstruction, Boom, Depression, Bust, (more) War, and Globalization all play a
part in the unfolding narrative of "The Grove" (as the Ewing family called it.)

Before we comment on the history any farther, let us present the historical data as we have
found it in our investigations between 2016 and 2022. The following documentation has been
preserved after considerable expense of time and effort by E.K. Knappenberger and Andrea J.
Early, in consultation with the present owners, Loren Hosteter and Glenda Siegrist.

It should be noted that the investigation of this piece of land is complicated by a variety of
factors, not the least of which is the way that land surveying was done between 1736 and 1944,
which make it impossible to accurately detail the precise locations of boundaries in old deeds.
Thus, reconstructing historical land ownership is de facto an act of historical interpretation. It is
nearly impossible to relate exactly which in a long series of deeds, conveyances and bills of sale
pertain to a particular physical location. This explains also other acts of interpretation, such as
the proprietary lineage during the division of the estate between Mary and Nancy Ewing.

Another pertinent consideration of historical interpretation comes from the 1864 burning of
Rockingham County records. For this we can thank not the Yankee soldiers, who were carrying
out orders in burning wagons laden with supplies at that time; indeed it was a Confederate, a
certain Mr. A.M. Newman, who hysterically and unilaterally decided to have his slave package
and transport a wagon full of courthouse records to Richmond, for "safekeeping." Subsequently,
this resulted in being burned by Union troops. Had Newman kept his cool, Rockingham history
would be much less complicated and easier today, and much priceless data would not have
been senselessly destroyed.

The author has included many of those historical deeds which are clearly relevant, not lost to
the flames; but exhaustive survey is both impractical and not possible.



The Augusta Courthouse records begin in the 1740's with the formation of Augusta County
from the previous home in Orange County. Because of the nature of the expansion of the
American frontier, Orange, and then Augusta Counties extended indefinitely west to the end of
the crown land claims, which were ultimately backed by the European political powers. Land
was doled out in a constant game of shifting political and economic power, and the three main
grants by the king in the area of Western and Northern Virginia served either monetary or
political purposes. This was the case with the Fairfax grant in the Northern Neck, which is now
more or less the northern border of Rockingham County. The Beverley grant was more or less
the area of eastern and central present-day Augusta, and a sizable portion of Rockingham
including the area in question for our purposes, was sold to a commercial enterprise led by Jost
Hite, a continental who promised to establish communities of settlers west of the Blue Ridge to
buffer against Indian attacks. The Indians were being provoked by the French and by insatiable
white expansion in the new world. Many of the oldest land grant deeds were recorded on vellum
by the colonial government in Williamsburg in the 1720's and 1730's. The earliest record here is
Jost Hite's agent and partner, Robert McCoy, who is recorded as selling the land at the
headwaters of Linville Creek to a series of farmer-pioneers who were of Scotch-Irish and
English descent. These were many of them Presbyterians, with a long and troubled relationship
to the British government. There was no love lost on their side when the US broke ties to
London.

The native peoples used the area primarily as a hunting ground, although the nearby Sparkling
Springs was considered to be a holy site. As you will see in the Ewing family history, there was
trouble between them and the Indians. The Ewings were, no doubt, involved in the speculated

massacre of natives at War Branch in the early 1740's, as alleged in the 1880's by the founder
of Eastern Mennonite, Bishop L.J. Heatwole.

The Augusta Courthouse records show a pattern of land sales and speculation, and the Ewing
family likely did not begin accumulating vast tracts of land until the 1770's or 1780's when the
economy collapsed during the long slog of the revolution. It was then that Rockingham County
was formed.



The Rockingham County Records begin the most storied moment of the Ewing place. There
is much to say about this. The Ewing family was deeply involved in the local, regional and
national movement of manifest destiny, and spread southward and westward from an early time.
The frist several generations that lived in William Ewing's log fort, "the Old House" at "the
Grove" -- had a profound religious and traditionalist disposition. This is attested in the attached
historical narratives.

What is not said in history is often as important as that which is said, and this is significantly true
in our case of the Ewings. The author is at present engaged in a study of the late 18th century
and early 19th century Presbyterian revival in the Shenandoah Valley, which has not to date
received an historical treatment of any kind. In the 1965 history of Cooks Creek Presbyterian
Church, for example -- an enterprise which from 1742 until 2000 had been deeply tied to the
Ewing property -- fails to mention the compelling significance of many of the pastors who served
in the area, or their personal ties to important figures in American history.

The revolutionary war, which the Ewings participated in along with their allied-through-marriage
kin the Harrisons, Moores, Bryans and Hustons, was a long and cruel slog which left the people
of the newly-formed country poor and broken. Few thought that the new experimental
revolutionary government would last. Financial trouble and the "moral degeneration" of war was
in every corner of the land. To answer these troubles and mend an ailing young country beset
with fiercely independent frontier ideology, the answer was religious revival -- a movement of
moral uplift, educational benefit, and open to all like-minded citizens.

Of course, our history excludes the agency of the enslaved people of Rockingham, who made
up a significant portion of the population, likely including in the Ewing family. Though Francis
Asbury, Bishop and founder of Methodism in Harrisonburg, fought for the equal treatment of
slaves, the pervading attitude towards African slavery in the area was typified by the
neighboring allied Gray and Ruffner families: slavery was a moral curse and the best thing to do
was to send blacks to Africa. The more liberal elements of the Ewing family no doubt fell into
this category, while the traditionalists likely defended the morality of slaveholding.

Several of the forgotten moments of the past which have not been treated by historians include
the 1800-1830 series of Presbyterian pastors serving the Ewings. This includes Rev. Daniel
Baker, who became a close friend of Presidents John Quincy Adams and Andrew Jackson, and
who is considered an early founder of the State of Texas. A thorough history must explore the
connections between the Ewings, Sam Houston, Andrew Jackson and the establishment of an
Independent Texas, which is alluded to in the Ewing family history. Other important personages
involved in the Ewing family religious circles include Rev. Joseph S. Smith, Rev. Andrew Baker
Davidson, Francis McFarland, Samuel Schmucker (of Lutheran and Gettysburg fame), Ananias
Davisson the famed music printer and patriarch of the Southern musical tradition (who married
into the Ewings), George A. Baxter, and Nash Le Grand. Each of these figures had connection
to the house and the occupants, and each has special place in the 19th century record. Other
important figures are detailed in Setftlers by the Long Grey Trail or in writings by descendent
Giles Devier, publisher in the 1870's in the Rockingham Register.



The following history is given by Giles Devier, civil war veteran and publisher of the
Rockingham Register, who was also a descendant of the Ewings. This insider information has
not been available or known outside of the original publication: 12 Mar 1885, Page 1.












The Civil War was devastating to the Ewing family for a number of reasons. The loss of equity
in slaves was one. Most of the Ewing men participated in the Confederate army, and several lost
their lives. Benjamin B. Ewing refused a medical exemption to the army, and joined with JEB
Stuart's showy cavalry, which liked to operate behind enemy lines. Unfortunately, B.B. had
rheumatism and fell behind on one of the famous Stuart rides-around-the-Union-army
maneuvers and was captured. Already ill, he was released, and died shortly after the episode.

This threw the Ewing family into a legal nightmare. Several of B.B.'s sisters stood to inherit the
house, and more siblings and cousins were living in other areas on both sides of the
confederate lines. Because the legislature had passed a law invalidating all inheritance outside
of the Confederate territory, confiscating all property for the war effort that might have stood to
be inherited by non-confederates, many families were forced into complicated legal maneuvers
to preserve their property lineages. If B.B. Ewing had survived the war, it might have saved
more of the Ewing estate, which by 1860 had grown into several thousands of acres and
stretched from the headwaters of Linville Creek to the headwaters of Cooks Creek.

Nancy B. Ewing, who took charge with her sister Mary of the Ewing estate from 1864 until her
death decades later, spent a good deal of time and money litigating these costly questions of
inheritance and validity of property rights. She was forced to sell off pieces of the farm to raise
funds to pay relatives and legal debts. This era saw the rise of the neighborhood which has
continued through the 20th century along Mount Clinton Pike for several miles.

Isaac Ewing, the last of the original estate Ewings to build a personal heritage in Rockingham
County, gave a personal interview and helped to source a 1930's Works Progress
Administration historical report on the Ewing House, which is appended here.












Mary Ewing, last of the Ewings to own "the Grove", assumed ownership along with Nancy.
Upon her death ca. 1918, heirs had to be bought out and the property was sold with certain
interests, to Walter N. Deputy. Deputy quickly sold the property to W.C. Wampler.

W.C. Wampler went bankrupt and sold the house and part of the land in 1926 and in 1933
to the New York Life Insurance Company, to settle his debts. Presumably he continued to
live and work in the place while it was owned by NYLIC under the trusteeship of Andrew Todd.

W.C. was part of a strong family of educators from rural Rockingham, and is the first to call his
farm "Brook Dale" -- presumably after he sold some of the land from the estate he continued his
farming. It is unclear what kind of legal maneuvers W.C. was pulling with debt and ownership of
the land -- he had transferred at least some of the property to his son, Carl, who sold portion to
Stanford Good in 1944, who then consolidated the property somewhat.

W.C. was brought up in the Church of the Brethren by his uncle Michael Good, an elder. Was
there a family or a church connection between S.C. Good and W.C. Wampler's maternal
Good's?

W.C. Wampler was involved in a sizable social and professional circle of people through his
connection with late 19th-century education in Rockingham county. He and his brother, I.S.
Wampler, were famous as teachers at a time when that was quite important. They were also
collegiate friends and peers of people like A. Paul Funkhouser, founder of Shenandoah
University; C.J. Heatwole, a founder of James Madison University; and Emmanuel Suter, L.J.
Heatwole, C.H. Brunk and P.S. Hartman -- founders of Eastern Mennonite.

William Charles Wampler, 78, retired educator and farmer, and father of Everett N. Wampler,
principal of the Main Street School, died at 8,45 Tuesday night, at his home, 38 Lawn Avenue. Mr.
Wampler had been in failing health since July 21, 1946, but his condition did not become serious
until last Thursday. Little hope had been held for his recovery in recent days. A son of the late
Samuel and Mary Good Wampler, he was born on March 12, 1871 in the Penn Laird community.
He moved to the New Market section at the age of 6 years, upon the death of his father, where he
made his home for eleven years and was reared by his uncle, Mr. Mike Good. He then came to
Harrisonburg where he attended school. Following his graduation from Peabody College,
Nashville, Tenn. he became associated with his brother, I. S. Wampler, at the West Central
Academy at Mt. Clinton the forerunner of the public school there. He later operated a store in Mt.
Clinton for ten years, prior to moving to West Rockingham where he owned and operated Brook
Dale Dairy. Upon his retirement from farm life in 1939. He later moved to the Pleasant Hill
section, where he resided for five years. For the past five years, he had been making his home in
Harrisonburg. Mr. Wampler was twice married. On September 12, 1893, he was married to Miss
Ida Elizabeth Miller, who died on January 12. 1932. In February 1933, he was united in marriage
to Mrs. Bertha Miller Argenbright, a sister of his first wife. Mr. Wampler was a member of the
Antioch Congregational Christian Church, near Greenmount. Besides his wife, Mrs. Berta
Argenbright Wampler, he is survived by six children, Mrs. Jessie Myers, at home; Mrs. Eula
Whitmore, Mt. Clinton; Carlton M. Wampler, Harrisonburg; R. Jennings Wampler, Chattanooga,
Tenn., Harold B. Wampler, Greensboro, N.C. and Everett N. Wampler, Harrisonburg. Seventeen
grandchildren and five great-grandchildren. A son; Woodrow Wampler, was killed on November



22,1944 in Germany while in the service of his country. Funeral services will probably be held
from the Antioch Congregational Christian Church near Greenmount. The body now rests at the
Lindsey Funeral Home on South Main Street pending final funeral arrangements which will be
announced later. Daily News Record, Harrisonburg, Va. Wed Jun 15, 1949.

Stanford C. Good purchased the place from R.W. Weaver, presumably trustee of Carl
Wampler, perhaps alternatively of the NYLIC arrangement with the W.C. Wampler estate. This
leaves a question of trusteeship: did Carl Wampler become insolvent or otherwise
incapacitated? Carl did not die until 1988.

S.C. Good was involved in several business ventures, owning land in Harrisonburg, mostly poor
and minority areas of town, as well as "Melrose Place and Service Station" on North Rte. 11
which became "Good's Transfer.". He was involved in industrial business in Linville area. He
also farmed more than 300 acres at the Ewing house, mostly cattle breeding. He was married
twice, first to Glenna Morris, and then to Ellen Huffman. He bought the estate in 1944 after the
death of his father, and called it "Brookdale Farms." Students at Eastern Mennonite College,
according to Lois Bowman Kreider, would go ice skating at the pond above the Good house.
According to her, Stanford decided to put in the road back to the pond for access that did not
ruin the cattle field.

Stanford Charles Good, 79, of Harrisonburg, died unexpectedly August 19, 1985. Mr. Good
owned, operated and was president of Good's Transfer, Inc., a refrigerated trucking firm which he
founded in 1929. This is the oldest operated trucking firm in Rockingham County. He was also
owner of Brookdale Farms in West Rockingham County where he raised Hereford Cattle. An
entrepreneur, he owned and financed various local businesses including a taxi company, auto
parts store, and bottling company. Mr. Good also owned significant real estate in the city and
county. He is survived by his wife, Ellen Belcher Good, three sons, Charles Stanford (Sonny)
Good, and Joseph Winfield Good, both of Harrisonburg, and Glen Franklin Good of Staunton, one
daughter, Charlotte Good Clark, of Harrisonburg, two step children, Sharon Belcher Sprinkel of
Harrisonburg, and Dennis Irl Belcher of Richmond, also surviving are ten grandchildren, seven
great grandchildren and five step grandchildren, one brother F. Ellsworth Good of Harrisonburg,
and five sisters, Murrell Good Tutwiler, of Keezletown, Henrietta Good Tutwiler and Zovada Good
Williams, both of Harrisonburg, Ruby Good McMichens of Grottoes, and Letha Good Liskey, of
Elkton. Funeral services will be held 11 a.m. Thursday. His body now rests at the Lindsey
Harrisonburg Funeral Home where members of the family will receive friends from 7-9 p.m.
Wednesday. Those desiring can make contributions to Hose Company No. 4 or the Harrisonburg
Rescue Squad. Richmond Times Dispatch. Tuesday, August 20, 1985.

Ellen Huffman Good was also married twice. She had children with a country music star
named Belcher, (Dennis, who died around 2018 unexpectedly). Ellen was given a reduced
portion of the estate of S.C. Good upon his death in 1985. The children of Stanford divided up
his estate and Ellen remained in the house. She made substantial improvements to the
grounds, and remodeled the interior of the house. Among the improvements were a swimming
pool and removal of hedge rows along the old lane in front of the house. The person hired to do
the excavating is a friend of the author's, Paul Foltz, now of Timberville.



Mrs. Ellen Jane Huffman Belcher Good, 88, a resident of White Birch Community in Harrisonburg,
died Monday, Jan. 26, 2015. A daughter of the late Phillip Irl Huffman Jr. and Isabelle Halterman
Huffman, she was born on Nov. 21, 1926, in Collierstown. Mrs. Good graduated from Effinger
High School near Lexington where she was first in her class. She was a quick learner who
recognized the necessity and value of education and pursued various business classes in her
adult years. After graduation, she married Finley Duncan “Red” Belcher who preceded her in
death in 1952. She and Red resided in Wheeling, WVa., when they weren’t traveling to Red’s
performances throughout the U.S. and Canada. Her love of travel never waned and she enjoyed
many trips throughout her life. After Red’s death, she returned to her family’s home in Alphin with
their two children. In 1955, she married Stanford Charles Good, and moved to his farm,
“Brookdale” west of Harrisonburg. After Mr. Good passed away in 1985, Mrs. Good maintained
their home (“The Grove”) and farm, until she moved to White Birch Community. Mrs. Good was
full of energy and known as a generous hostess who always welcomed family and friends into
their home. After moving to Harrisonburg, Mrs. Good worked for Sears, Roebuck & Company in
both retail and the service department. Later, she worked at James Madison University in the
Admissions and Financial Aid Offices. While at JMU, she tirelessly assisted many students who
saw her as a friend and maintained contact with her long after their graduation. Mrs. Good was an
avid supporter of JMU sports and traveled to many games. She was a longtime member of Cooks
Creek Presbyterian Church. Surviving her is a son, Dennis Irl Belcher and wife, Vickie, of
Richmond, and a daughter, Sharon Belcher Sprinkel (Don Morris) of Harrisonburg; five
grandchildren, Sarah Belcher O’Keiff and husband Conor, of Arlington, Matthew |. Belcher (Julie
Hannah) of Wivenhoe, UK, and Benjamin S. Belcher (Erica Creasey) of Richmond, VA; Jonathan
Sprinkel of Herndon and William Sprinkel Jr., and wife, Laura Crowe of Middle River, Md.; five
great-grandchildren, Conor J. O’Keiff, Jr. of Arlington and Sarah, Natalie, Abigail Ellen and Bailey
Sprinkel-Crowe of Middle River, Md. She also is survived by three step-children, Joseph W. Good
and wife, Joyce of Harrisonburg, Charlotte G. Clark and husband, Robert, of Harrisonburg, and
Glen Good of Harrisonburg and is preceded in death by a stepson, Charles S. Good. She is
survived by numerous step-grandchildren; and numerous step-great-grandchildren. Mrs. Good is
survived by sisters, Rosemary Heilmeier of St. Clairsville, Ohio, and Caroline Mace of
Collierstown, and a brother, John Roller Huffman of Yorktown. She was preceded in death by
brothers Frank and Palmer Irl Huffman and sister Phyllis Grow. Her body will be cremated at
Lindsey Funeral Home & Crematory in Harrisonburg. There will be no viewing. A memorial
service will be conducted on Saturday, Jan. 31, 2015, at 11 a.m. at Cooks Creek Presbyterian
Church by Pastor George Evans.



Loren Hosteter and Glenda Siegrist are the current owners of the home, which is known
by some as "The Cannonball House" due to damage thought to have been done during the
civil war. Loren is currently in the process of restoring the house during the bicentennial
anniversary of its building. This report was a gift to Loren and Glenda and family from E.K.
Knappenberger, who lived in the side apartment four years from January of 2016 until the
end of 2019 while he attended Eastern Mennonite Seminary. All future history of the Ewing
Estate must proceed from this point forward, and is for others to pursue. Let the current
owners decide how they would like to write their chapter of the story after this.
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